
  

 

 
  
17 June 2022 
 
Mr E. John Maitland 
Maitland Lawyers 
Suite 1005, 530 Little Collins Street 
Melbourne VIC 3000 
By email: admin@maitlandlawyers.com.au 
 
 
Dear Mr Maitland 

RE: QLD TSL HOLDERS v QLD GOVERNMENT LEGAL ACTION 

We refer to your letter on 8 June 2022 (Your Letter)1 which we understand you have also 
published for wide circulation amongst the Taxi Council of Queensland’s members.  

We note that TCQ’s letter to you on 10 May 20222 remains unacknowledged and 
unanswered.  We also note that the letter from our legal team, Ellem Warren Lawyers, on 10 
June3 was acknowledged but received only a dismissive reply. 

In reply to Your Letter, we advise the following: 

Firstly, TCQ cannot reasonably accept your claim of continuing to act for 957 members in 
the legal action against the Queensland Government.  Differing with your presumption4, TCQ 
understands that –  

1. the legal action ended some four (4) months ago with the unsuccessful mediation 
event in mid-February 2022, and ipso facto the terms of your firm's retainer to act 
ended mid-February as well; plus  

2. many of the “957” have written to you formally terminating your authority to act on 
their behalf, thereby removing any possible doubt about your authority having 
expired.  

Secondly, TCQ considers your accusation of “unwarranted meddling”5 to be without merit.  
From the feedback TCQ has received from town hall style meetings held with taxi licence 
holders around the State we know that there is wide appreciation for our efforts to call out 
groups promoting $50,000/licence buy-back figures6 and even $150,000/licence buy-back 
figures7.  TCQ’s strong opposition to such grossly low licence buy-back figures has received 
overwhelming support, and not just from the majority of taxi licence holders who chose not 
to join your plaintiff group but also from amongst those that did.  Put bluntly, TCQ makes no 
apology for standing up and opposing anyone promoting “solutions” that misunderstand and 
undervalue the assets of Queensland taxi businesses.  Contrary to your view then, we 
consider our interventions have been genuinely warranted and moreover that they have the 
support of the overwhelming majority of TCQ’s members. 

 
1 attached for the convenience of readership as Attachment “A” 
2 attached for the convenience of readership as Attachment “B” 
3 attached for the convenience of readership as Attachment “C” 
4 Para 1, page 1, of Your Letter 
5 Para 4, page 1, of Your Letter 
6 A figure that your lobbyist suggested to TCQ may be considered a reasonable buy-back price 
7 An estimate of the average amount payable per licence based on your Steering Committee’s representatives’ advice to TCQ.      
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Thirdly, TCQ agrees with your comment that wide-spread confusion exists within the industry 
about the status and future intentions of the legal action, however in our view the 
responsibility for that confusion lies with you rather than TCQ.  For example, in our letter to 
you on 10 May 2022, TCQ noted the completely contradictory advice being given about the 
legal action’s Trust Fund by different members of your Steering Committee.  Our letter has 
not received any reply and the confused positions seemingly remain unresolved.  Another 
example can be found in the second paragraph of your letter where you concede that the 
legal action “has ended” but then go on to assert that it is somehow “not ended”, effectively 
continuing on under your guidance as a political campaign.  TCQ has received many 
complaints from members of the plaintiff group about this strange pivot and pretences that 
the action was supposedly always a political campaign rather than a legal battle to be won 
or lost in court.  In TCQ’s view, our members’ concern and confusion with this apparent re-
writing of history presents as entirely reasonable, given the logical inconsistencies in the 
revised position.  For example, if the action was always a political campaign that commenced 
in 2018: 

• Why was a political lobbyist only engaged from July 2021 and why was she only 
registered on the Queensland Lobbyist Register as acting for your group from 27 
August 2021, some three 3 years after the action commenced rather than from the 
outset? (and only after the Queensland Supreme Court and Australian High Court had 
summarily dismissed hearing the matter?) 

• Why has over 70% of the Trust Fund monies reportedly been spent with solicitors and 
barristers with no professional political lobbying experience or qualifications, if the 
action was properly a political campaign rather than a legal action?  

• Why have you as a Victorian solicitor, with only one (1) small office in Melbourne and 
no track record of success in political lobbying, reportedly been paid over $600,000 - 
if the action was not a legal action but rather always a State based political campaign 
to be waged in Queensland? 

TCQ’s members find such matters confusing and we agree with them.  In our view, it is also 
confusing as to how taking over 3 years and reportedly spending $2 million to merely achieve 
a single, solitary meeting for only a couple of members of the Group with a Government 
Minister can be portrayed as anything other than a pyrrhic victory.   In sum, TCQ’s and our 
members’ questions are not a cause for any confusion, the confusion emanates from the lack 
of answers and/or inconsistencies in the answers to our members’ questions.   

Fourthly, we simply note for the record that TCQ wrote to Ms Meares on 17 March 2022 
inviting her, as the apparent leader of your Steering Committee, to provide suggestions 
and/or advice about how the Steering Committee members wished to work with TCQ.  
Receiving no reply, we followed up that invitation with a further email on 24 May 2022 which 
also received no reply.  Contrary to your criticism of TCQ, it is in fact your Steering Committee 
that has shown no interest to engage with TCQ about working cooperatively. 

Fifthly, TCQ is unaware of publishing any misleading articles in its Weekly News8.  TCQ has 
been providing information and advice in a range of formats to our members for over 70 
years.  It is a natural role for an industry peak body such as TCQ.  If you are able to point to 
any specific error in a TCQ article in the Weekly News, we would welcome being provided 
with facts and evidence proving such error was indeed made.  Please be assured, that if 
substantive errors were ever proven then TCQ would be prepared to promote their correction.  

 
8 Para 4, page 1, of Your Letter 
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However, please also be assured that TCQ has no intention of resiling from positions where 
the facts support them, no matter how much they may irritate anyone promoting contrary 
views.  We would simply remind you that the majority of taxi licence holders in Queensland 
chose not to join your legal action and so they are excluded from all of your privileged 
communications.  It therefore falls to TCQ to keep those licence holders informed, especially 
regarding activities that may present a risk to their business assets or general well-being.  

By way of conclusion, we would simply remind you of the tangible assistance that TCQ 
provided to your promotion of the legal action. TCQ gave you a platform at our 2018 
Queensland Taxi Conference and we even funded your travel to attend that conference.  On 
request, TCQ ran helpful updates periodically in the Weekly News, such as the promotion of 
your “roadshows” which you acknowledged at the time (e.g. your email 19 November 2018).  
We also provided further assistance to you in the supply of TCQ’s archival materials helpful 
to your research and preparations (e.g.  acknowledged in your email on 26 February 2019). 

In that context then, we would encourage you to consider responding properly to the letter 
from Ellem Warren Lawyers, acting for us and the members of the plaintiff group who have 
appointed TCQ as their agents.  The implied questions raised by Ellem Warren Lawyers in 
relation to the Trust Fund you established and have administered remain matters of serious 
concern, and they deserve not be dismissed or ignored: 

• Have all of the “insurance” monies, that were reportedly collected on the basis of 
being subject to an express proviso in the Disclosure Statement & Costs Agreement, 
namely of being "set aside for the sole purpose of insurance against adverse costs”, 
been fully and properly preserved? 

• Was the sum of “insurance” monies contributed by client licence holders about 
$1,350,000? 

• Was the sum of adverse costs negotiated as payable by the plaintiffs in the legal 
action only $150,000? 

• Is the total amount of residual monies in the Trust Fund available for return to 
claimants then at least $1,200,000 (i.e. equal to $1,3500,000 minus $150,000)? 

• If the total amount of residual monies in the Trust Fund should be at least $1,200,000 
why are plaintiff taxi licence holders reportedly only being offered refunds of $450 per 
licence instead of approximately $890 per licence? 

TCQ understands that those of our members who contributed monies into the Trust Fund 
want Ellem Warren Lawyers, and indeed TCQ, to pursue answers to these questions.  We 
intend to continue supporting them in that.  TCQ also understands that the overwhelming 
majority of taxi licence holders in Queensland want TCQ to secure the best possible 
outcomes available for them via the Queensland Government’s Review of the Taxi Licencing 
Framework and do so as a matter of urgency.  We are committed to doing that as well.     
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
Blair Davies 
CEO 
Taxi Council of Queensland 



 
 

  

- 4 - 

 

 
 



 
 

 

  

- 5 - 

 
 
 



 
 

 

  

- 6 - 

 
 
 



 
 

 

  

- 7 - 

 
 
 



 
 

 

  

- 8 - 

 
 
 



 
 

 

  

- 9 - 

 


